Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 8 February 2018

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton
31 January 2018

PART 1
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee

3.

Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure

4.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5.

Vision Buxton Bid - Presentation by Vision Buxton
An executive summary of the Buxton BID Feasibility Study can be downloaded
from the Vision Buxton web site http://www.visionbuxton.co.uk/bids.html

6.

A628 Update - Presentation by Highways England

7.

High Peak Design Guide - Supplementary Planning Document (Pages 7 - 24)

8.

Bingswood Industrial Estate - Access and Infrastructure for Employment (Pages 25
- 32)

9.

Right to Buy receipts: Update Report (Pages 33 - 38)

10.

Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 39 - 40)

11.

Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of Economy and Growth Select Committee
Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillor L Grooby (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Atkins
Councillor G Claff
Councillor J Douglas
Councillor P Easter
Councillor S Flower
Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor C Johnson
Councillor R Quinn

Councillor K Sizeland

Councillor F Sloman

Agenda Item 4
High Peak Borough Council

ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE
Meeting:

Thursday, 23 November 2017 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens,
Buxton

Present:

Councillor L Grooby (Chair)
Councillors R Atkins, J Douglas, S Flower, S Helliwell, D Kerr (substitute for A
McKeown), J Perkins (substitute for P Easter), R Quinn, K Sizeland and
F Sloman
Councillors T Ashton, T Kemp and J Pritchard were also in attendance.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A McKeown and
P Easter

18/18

TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)
Councillor Grooby declared an other interest in agenda item 6 (Draft
Minerals and Aggregates Extraction in High Peak and Derbyshire Dales
Report) - reason: employed by Tarmac at Tunstead Quarry.
Councillor Sizeland declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in agenda item
5 (Accelerated Enterprise Growth Programme), remained, spoke but did not
vote.

18/19

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2017 be approved
as a correct record.

18/20

DRAFT MINERALS & AGGREGATE EXTRACTION IN HIGH PEAK &
DERBYSHIRE DALES REPORT
(Agenda Item 6)
There was an update on the findings and recommendations of the Draft
Minerals and Aggregate Extraction in High Peak and Derbyshire Dales
Economic Impact Assessment Report.
Issues discussed included:
 Road infrastructure and need for bypasses.
 Discussions with the Peak District National Park and their strategic
plan.
 Public consultation.
 Encouraging rail transport of aggregate.

Page 3

1



Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 23 November 2017








Increasing rail capacity and discussions with Network Rail.
Retaining jobs and skills.
Logistics and the Local Enterprise Partnership.
HS2 releasing mainline capacity to London and authorities west and
east excluded from discussions.
SEMMS focus on industry needs.
Housing.

RESOLVED:
That the findings of the study and the suggested interventions to help to
maximise future growth opportunities be noted.

18/21

ACCELERATED
PRESENTATION
(Agenda Item 5)

ENTERPRISE

GROWTH

PROGRAMME

There was a presentation on implementing the Enterprise Growth
Programme, Growth Strategy priorities, employment land monitoring, local
sites, key barriers, business support and digital infrastructure.
Issues discussed included:
 Slow development on some sites
 Broadband costs in small rural communities
 Work with Broadband Delivery UK and Derbyshire County Council to
include more of High Peak and promotion
 Peak District National Park
 Little speculative development in High Peak
 Potential increase in employment
 Supporting businesses and encouraging development with the
budget available
 Population increase and infrastructure
 Balancing housing and employment need
 Benefits from the Local Plan
 Funds allocated to other areas within Derbyshire and Manchester
RESOLVED:
That the presentation be received with thanks.
18/22

A57/A628 TRANS-PENNINE PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 7)
There was an update on the recent announcement regarding the A57/A628
Trans-Pennine programme. Discussion took place on:

Possible start date of March 2020 and
opening August 2022

Difficulties arising from the construction
phase

Some scepticism locally
Page
4

Issues
in Tintwistle and the Peak Park
2

-



Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 23 November 2017

RESOLVED:

18/23

1.

That the update be noted and further details of the scheme be considered
as they emerge.

2.

That the Council continues to seek a solution to transport issues on the
A628 in Tintwistle.

3.

That consideration be given to the wider implications of the proposed
scheme for the local economy.

SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 8)
Arrangements in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire to create a metro area
and Proposals for Business Improvement Bids would be added.
RESOLVED:
That the Work Programme as amended be noted.

The meeting concluded at 7.45 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 5
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee
8th February 2018
TITLE:

High Peak Design Guide – Supplementary
Planning Document

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Tony Kemp – Executive Councillor
for Tourism, Regeneration and Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER:

Joanne Brooks – Regeneration Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendix 1 – High Peak Design Guide
Appendix 2 – Public consultation feedback
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

A draft design guide has been completed for High Peak. This has now been
subject to public consultation with the public and a regional organisation that
promotes good architectural design. This report sets out the results of the
consultation exercise and recommends that the amended design guide is
adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

Members are recommended to :
(a) note the consultation comments and officer’s responses to them;
(b) request that the Executive recommends that the Council adopts the Design

Guide;
(c) delegate approval to officers to make any technical updates to the design
guide, including the detailed appendices, as required.
3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The draft High Peak Design Guide aims to promote new and sustainable high
quality design which respects the distinctiveness of the area. The general
principles of design are set out within the text of the guide itself. This will then
be supplemented by a series of technical appendices to the guide that will set
out how the principles are to be applied.

3.2

Members approved the draft document for the purposes of wider consultation
in 2016. Public consultation was carried out for a 4-week period between
Monday 29th February and Tuesday 29th March 2016. Prior to the public
consultation, all members were invited to a presentation of the draft document

Page 7

on 25 February 2016.
3.3

The consultation responses showed a general support for the production of
the design guide but with a number of observation and detailed comments.

3.4

The consultation feedback is summarised in Section 5 and reproduced in more
detail, including officer’s responses in Appendix 2.

3.5

We have also consulted with the Architecture and Design Centre for the East
Midlands (OPUN) which offers an independent and impartial review service to
local authorities on all building design related matters. The advice received
from OPUN has been taken into account within the draft High Peak Design
Guide and is included in Appendix 2.

3.6

It is the intention to adopt the design guide as a Supplementary Planning
Document which will form part of the suite of documents aligned with the
Adopted Local Plan.

3.7

The design guide will be a useful guidance document for applicants and
agents when preparing planning applications. It will be used by case officers
and Councillors in the determination of planning applications. It is intended to
be an overarching ‘live’ document that will be continually supplemented by
a series of technical appendices on a range of design issues. Whilst hosted
by the Council’s web site it can be downloaded for print.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

This report promotes the need for good design and secures high quality new
developments within High Peak. This in turn, is related to the Council’s
corporate aim 3: To support economic development and regeneration
measured through sustainable towns and rural communities and increased
economic growth.

5.

Options

5.1

There are two principal options:
Option 1 - Do Nothing
Without the design guide there will be a general lack of design guidance that is
specific to High Peak. There will be no mechanism by which the Council can
raise the quality of design and determine applications for development within
the area. Not recommended
Option 2 – Adopt the High Peak Design Guide
The adoption of the High Peak Design Guide will offer additional
supplementary design advice for developers, architects and agents when
submitting proposals for development in High Peak. The guide identifies the
local building traditions and characteristics of the area and offers advice to
ensure that any new development enhances and responds to the local

Page 8

context. The guide and the corresponding technical appendices will improve
and raise the standard of design across the area and can be used in the
determination of planning applications and appeals.
Recommended
6.

Results of the public consultation exercise

6.1

In accordance with the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement, the
following groups were consulted;






Local architects and planning agents
Local amenity groups, Parish Councils and special interest groups
Ward Councillors
Key council officers
Members of the public

6.2

A copy of the document was also available to view on the Council’s web
site and a hard copy of the design guide was available to view at local
Council offices and libraries.

6.3

The Council received a number of comments regarding the content of the
design guide and these are summarised briefly as follows.







6.4

Following the general consultation exercise the Council consulted with OPUN
on the Design Guide. In summary they commented as follows:




6.5

The tone of the document is too entrenched in the past and more
emphasis should be given to the positive role that modern architecture
can bring.
There should be more flexibility on using modern materials.
The guide is too prescriptive in places e.g. new development, use of
materials and detailing does not reflect paragraphs 59 and 60 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (the government’s policy
guidance on planning issues).
The document is lacking in any real detailed guidance on
accommodating new development within High Peak such as layout,
scale, density, car parking standards etc.
There is a lack of good examples illustrating the content of the
document.
Additional comments required promoting inclusive access.

The document is overly wordy and should be a leaner document.
Good examples should be more practical and guidance should be
more precise.
The document should be more user friendly.

By taking on board the comments from OPUN the document has been edited
to offer a slimmer and more precise document with less section headings. It
has been repackaged into a web based format that can be continually
added to and updated. Each section heading and topic area will have a

Page 9

series of technical appendices that offer more detailed and practical advice
and good examples - some of which are already complete. As a result many
of the general responses have been addressed within these changes.
7.

Implications
7.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications

7.2

Workforce
No implications

7.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

7.4

Financial Considerations
There are no financial considerations for the Council relating to the
recommendations of this report.

7.5

Legal
No implications

7.6

Sustainability
Sustainability is at the heart of the Council’s design policies. The
Council supports the use of sustainable design and construction
methods and is committed to delivering new homes with
environmentally sustainable design that helps to save the
environment, energy, water and money.

7.7

Internal and External Consultation
Both an internal and external consultation process was completed,
the results of which are included in Appendix 2.

7.8

Risk Assessment
No significant issues have been identified.

8.

Background and Detail

8.1

The importance of good design is recognised by the Government in its
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF, 2012):

Page 10

Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible
from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places
better for people” (NPPF, paragraph 56)
8.2

The need for high quality development is also emphasised in the
adopted High Peak Local Plan. This document and other relevant
supplementary planning documents set out what the Council would
expect to see in terms of securing good design within High Peak.

8.3

This design guide will be adopted as a Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) and sets out the overarching principles in securing
good design. Once adopted, the design guide will be continually
updated and supplemented by detailed technical appendices on a wide
range of design issues. Being primarily a web based document it can be
continually updated and kept abreast of current policies and practice.

8.4

The design guide will be a material consideration in all planning
decisions which involve development in High Peak. It will carry
considerable weight in decision making, having been subject to scrutiny
and amendment through wide public consultation.
Dai Larner
Executive Director Place

Web links and background papers - Draft High Peak Design Guide
Location -

Files held electronically

Contact details -

Joanne Brooks ext 365

Page 11

Appendix 2 – Draft High Peak Design Guide – Public Consultation responses
Respondent
OPUN

Page 12
A Leclercq
Buxton Civic Ass

Comment
Officer response
1.Good overview of area but overly wordy. It Comments noted
needs to be more practical and lean. Review
the style so that it is more crisp and to the
point.

Officer recommendation
The design guide has been
amended so that it has become a
leaner and simpler document with
less topic headings. A list of
important bullet points has been
inserted at the end of each section
to give a quick summary.

2.Document needs to be repackaged with
end user in mind.

Comments noted

The document has been repackaged
so that it is primarily a web based
document that the user can move
through and reference quickly.

3. Lacks guidance on what to do and is quite Comments noted
generic. Not precise enough to give clear
direction and needs to be more specific.

Each section will be accompanied by
a list of further information (some
already published) and additional
technical guidance notes on relevant
topic areas. Most of these have
been prepared in draft form but need
supplementing with actual on the
ground examples. Given the design
guide will be web based it can be
continually added to.

Support for document
BCA support Design Guide

No further action required
No further action required

Support noted
Support noted

Respondent
High Peak
Access Group

Comment
General comments on highlighting the need
for inclusive, adaptable and accessible
space and buildings with particular
reference to sections 2, 5, 6, 8 and 9.

Officer response
Comments noted

Officer recommendation
These are minor changes of a
technical nature - agree to amend
text where required.

Identified some incorrect annotation of
photographs
Additional hyperlinks required to document
published by Historic England: Easy Access
to Historic Buildings

Page 13

Section 2 - should also reference visitors to
High Peak
HPBC Officer

Reference should be made to Landscape
Character SPD in Section 11 and HPBC
Tree Policy in appendix 1

Comments noted

These are minor changes of a
technical nature- agree to amend
text where required

HPBC Officer

Section 12 - Reference to statutory
protection for wildlife and link to Derbyshire
Wildlife Trust in Appendices.

Comments noted

These are minor changes of a
technical nature- agree to amend
text where required

HPBC Officers

General comments on Sustainability Section 6
– Reference NPPF and HPBC adopted Local
Plan policies.

Chapter 6 relating to
sustainable design has
been omitted and
sustainability has now
been threaded through the
whole document

Text amendments made where
appropriate.

Sustainable design
comments reflect
standards responding to
national and local planning
policies.

No text amendments required.

Support Section 12 – Wildlife

Wildlife section now
incorporated in section 4

No text amendments required.

Future development should fit into context and
resist piecemeal development.

The importance of
designing in context is
dealt with in Section 3.

No text amendments required.

The Design Guide does
respond to these
paragraphs but officers
recommend additional text
in para 1.2 to be more

To amend para 1.2.

Insert a sub heading dealing with sustainable
transport.

J Davy

Page 14
J Poulter

Some concern expressed about use of natural
materials and viability
General comments on setting high standards
for sustainable building and development.

This was the most detailed and comprehensive set of
comments the extent of which cannot be reproduced in
their entirety, but can be summarised as follows:

Design Guide is not in accord with paras 59
and 60 of the NPPF

positive about new
development of a
contemporary design.
The guide maybe used as a justification to
prevent contemporary/modern architecture
based on style and appearance.

Page 15

Section 1
A generalisation that every traditional building
is good can prevent progress and
improvement. No mention of the context
buildings were constructed in.

The Design Guide should incorporate more
specific objectives and standards such as
density, space standards, car parking,
accessibility and sustainability.

Section 2
Para 2.3 should be amended to respect
today’s lifestyles whilst responding to its

Officers are keen to
distinguish between the
matters of style and
appearance and
professional judgements
should be restricted to
design rather than
personal taste.

Guide has a more positive response
to modern and contemporary design.

Officers accept the point
being made and agree to
amend text to reflect the
needs, resources and
technologies of the time.

To amend paragraph 1.6

The Design Guide is
Para 1.2 amended to reference
intended to set out high
further detailed guidance.
levels design principles
and many of the more
detailed principles will be
covered in further technical
appendices.
Officer’s accept redraft of
para 2.3 by respondent

To amend para 2.3 (now para 2.2)

context.

Page 16

Identifying the characteristics of traditional
buildings in High Peak is contained in section 2
but this does not place these in context with
people needs, technology and resources
available.

Officers agree with
respondent and suggest
an amendment to para 2.8
to reflect this point.

To amend para 2.8 (now 2.7)

The paragraphs dealing with modern
architecture should be more positive about the
role of new buildings.

Officers suggest an
amendment to paragraphs
2.13 – 2.16 to be more
positive on the integration
of new buildings in a
traditional context.

To amend paras 2.13 – 2.16 (now
paras 2.8 – 2.11).

Section 3
New development with a strong vertical
emphasis should be allowed if not causing
harm.

This reference now omitted No amendments necessary
due to redraft suggested
by OPUN.

New roofs need not always respect or copy
traditional characteristics.

Officers accept this point
and suggest an
amendment to para 3.6 to
reflect this comment.

Para 3.6 (now para 3.4) amended to
state that new roofs should
‘normally’ fit within the existing
roofscapes.

There should be 5 main factors and not 3 in
considering new design. Form and scale need
to be separated and proportion added and
each factor expanded.

Officers don’t disagree with
this comment but are trying
to keep the guide to a
reasonably high level in
terms of detail.

To redraft paragraphs 3.12 – 3.25
(now paras 3.7 – 3.17) to deal with
scale, materials, proportions,
detailing and form.

Section 4
Expecting all new buildings to be constructed
in stone and slate is not realistic. There are
issues around sourcing, cost implications and
the sustainability of transporting these. More
modern sustainable materials should be used.

Agree to amend para 4.1
To amend para 4.1(now para 7.14)
to state ’wherever possible’
new buildings should be
constructed from the same
palette of materials.

Page 17

Through colour acrylic render systems, timber
cladding and the use of brick should not be
ruled out as appropriate materials. Use of new
materials is too restrictive.

Agree to amend para 4.7
to allow modern renders in
less sensitive locations.
However the use of brick
and timber boarding is not
prevalent throughout High
Peak.

Expecting a high level of detailing and
craftsmanship on all buildings is an unrealistic
expectation.

Officers do not agree with
this point. The existing
wording make an important
point as often the use of
stone is purely executed.

To amend Section 4 (now section 7)
regarding the use of modern
renders.

No amendments proposed.

Section 5
The section is too brief and should cover more
guidance on density, frontages, external
spaces, parking and boundary treatments.

Section 6
Sustainable Design should not necessarily be
seen as a stand-alone chapter but a thread

Officer accept this point
but the additional guidance
requested will be covered
by future technical
guidance.

No amendments proposed to this
section (now section 4).

Where relevant sustainability issues
Officers agree and this
are highlighted at the end of each
section has been removed. section.

throughout the whole document.
Section 7 and 8
The guidance does not mention the
acceptability of extending buildings by making
a clear distinction between old and new.
The guidance is too restrictive on conversions.
Section 10
More flexibility is required in this section as
guidance on detailing is too restrictive.

Page 18

Section 11
This section should be more realistic about
external materials.

R Hubble

Officers agree and
redrafted paras in section
7 and 8 (now section 5)
to reflect the points made.

Para 5.6 amended.
Para 5.15 amended.

Amend para 10.2 (now 7.3)
Officers agree to make
guidance less prescriptive
by amending wording to
allow more flexibility.
No amendments required.
The section (now section
4) is not unrealistic and
advocates the use of top
dressed tarmac.

Support and concur with all comments made
by J Poulter.

See above responses

See above recommendations

Welcomes Design Guide but concerned about
the amount referenced to the Peak Park.

High Peak contains
landscape and settlement
areas within the Peak Park
and there are strong
similarities within the built
and natural environment.
Given this the Peak Park
Design Guide proved a
useful reference point.

As per OPUN comments document
redrafted and less emphasis is given
to Peak park.

Page 19
A Hubble

Draft guide ignores reference to NPPF paras
59 and 60 and guidance from Landmark Trust
and Historic England (HE).

The Design Guide
No amendments required
references paragraph 56 of
the National Planning
Policy Framework. Paras
59 and 60 are dealt with in
the body of the design
document. Reference to
guidance from HE

The guide ignores modern materials and use
of brick.

See above responses
under J Poulter

See above recommendations.

General comment regarding the validity of the
Design Review Panel (DRP) and lack of
qualified architect retained by HPBC

Officer note this comment
but the mechanism of the
DRP and staffing
resources do not form part
of the Design Guide.

No amendments required

Support and concur with all comments made
by J Poulter

See above responses

See above recommendations

Main concern with overall tone that comes from
a ‘conservation’ point of view and not
‘regeneration’. Document is not progressive or
forward thinking enough and lacks good
contemporary examples within a conservation
context.

Officers agree with and
suggest an amendment to
be more positive on the
integration of new
buildings in a traditional
context.

Paras 2.8 – 2.11 and section 3 more
positive take on new development.

Importance of context is correct but document
does not reflect the differing contexts within
High Peak.

Comment noted but feel
that this point is reflected
in Section 3.

No amendments necessary.

Page 20

Character assessments by developers should
demonstrate understanding of individual sites
and guide appropriate development.

Character assessments
are welcomed to guide
appropriate development

Para 3.11(now 3.7) amended to
reflect this point.

Developments should take into account
position and aspect.

Comment noted but this
point is already referenced
in Section 6 on
Sustainability.

Section 6 now omitted but comment
incorporated into para 3.17.

Document does not reflect aspirations and
requirements of today’s society and how this
impacts on design. Lack of opportunity to
produce anything different.

Comment noted and para
2.3 amended to reflect
demands of today’s
lifestyles.

Para 2.3 (now 2.2) amended.

High Peak has evolved over a long period of
time and is a product of different eras which
gives visual interest and should continue to do
so.

Comment noted and para
2.8 amended to reflect this
point.

To amend Para 2.8 (now 2.7).

More modern materials such as render and
timber are dismissed in document.

Officers note this comment
and agree to amend
section 4 (now section7) to
be flexible over the use of
modern materials where
appropriate including
render. Timber however is
not a traditional material in
High Peak.

Amend wording of Section 4 (now
section 7).

The document does not deal with how modern
developments and amenity requirements can

Officers note this comment No amendments required.
but feel that this is an issue

Page 21
J Hubble

be balanced with a more traditional village
layout.

and topic area that would
be presented as one of the
future technical guidance
notes.

Concern over restrictions regarding conversion
and extension to converted buildings.

Officers note these
comments and agree to
amend para 8.4 to allow
extensions and alterations
where necessary and
where approached
carefully.

Amend para 8.4 (now 5.15)

Design Guide would benefit from photographs
to inspire new development.

Officer agree with this
point and the final
document will require
some additional
photographs especially in
Section 6.

Section 6 has now been omitted.
Photographs have been added to
final document and good examples
can continually be uploaded.

Design Review board needs to be independent
with members qualified in building design and
architecture.

See response to R Hubble
above

See recommendation to R Hubble
above.

The concept of the document is to be
applauded but there are omissions and
generalisations that do not encourage good
design.

Comment noted

No amendments required

Difficult to find any real guidance.

The Design Guide is
intended to set out high
level design principles and

No amendments required.

many more of the detailed
guidance will follow in
technical appendices.

Page 22

The document gives the impression of not
encouraging new building materials,
technology or design.

See response to J Poulter
above

See recommendations to J Poulter
above.

Very negative attitude to modern architecture
in Section 2.

Officers suggest
amendments to Sections 2
and 3 to be more positive
on the role of new
buildings in traditional
context.

Paras 2.8 – 2.11 and section 3 more
positive take on new development.

No acknowledgement in the draft document of
the 20th or 21st century influences in design.

One of the defining
characteristics of High
Peak is the prevalence of
19th century vernacular
architecture. There are few
examples of latter
architectural styles that
would warrant inclusion
with the Design Guide.

No amendments required.

Much of the document is personal taste rather
than design principles. The 3 main design
criteria in section 3 result in a homogenous
mass of pastiche buildings trying to imitate
traditional buildings and no recognition of
present day living.

Comment noted and
officers suggest a redraft
of paras 3.12 – 3.25.

Paras 3.12 – 3.25 (now 3.8 – 3.17)
amended to address scale,
materials, proportions, detailing and
form.

Page 23

Contrasts in scale and use of sustainable
materials would break the monotony of new
buildings.

Officers note these
comments and propose to
add an additional para
3.12 (now 3.8) regarding
scale. The use of new and
sustainable materials is
referenced in section 4
(now 7)

Amendments to text already
proposed to cover these points

The draft document should look at the
guidance given by Historic England and their
attitude to extending listed buildings using
modern materials and designs.

Comments noted and para
7.7 amended to reflect
guidance in HE document.

Amend para 7.7 (now para 5.6)

No comment has been made on housing size.

This level of guidance
No amendments required.
would fall in further
technical appendices that
would need to reflect policy
H3 of the adopted Local
Plan.

The draft guidance focuses mainly on housing
but no mention of larger buildings and how use
will dictate form and appearance. The
example of Buxton Water is welcome in the
document.

There is a section on large
buildings (para 3.9).

Additional text to supplement para
3.9 (now 3.6) to respond to
comment.

Several issues in the sustainability section that
need addressing such as cars and how we
plan for them; is stone sustainable? The use

Section 6 now omitted
from document. There is
already a sub-section on

No amendments required.

and cost of modern materials.

sustainable materials. The
successful integration of
cars into new
developments is likely to
be a topic for future
technical guidance.

Planners need to consider the use of external
advisors to advise and support design
decisions.

See response to R Hubble
above

See recommendations to R Hubble
above

Page 24

Agenda Item 8
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee
8 February 2018

TITLE:

Bingswood Industrial Estate – Access and
Infrastructure for Employment

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Kemp – Executive Councillor
for Regeneration

CONTACT OFFICER:

Pranali Parikh – Regeneration Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Whaley Bridge

Appendix 1 - Bingswood Industrial Estate Masterplan

1.

Reason for the Report
The report sets out the results of long-running negotiations with owners of
businesses at Bingswood Industrial Estate in Whaley Bridge. The negotiations
have been aimed at securing a financial commitment from the businesses to
build a new bridge and associated infrastructure to improve access on to the
estate and reduce HGV traffic in the town centre. Under current funding rules
the project requires a mixture of public and private funding in order to gain the
essential external support. The D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership (the LEP)
has made it clear that any public funding must be matched by a significant
contribution from the private sector beneficiaries of the investment. The report
states that the businesses are not willing to make this contribution and
therefore the recommendation is to close the project to build a bridge
connecting the northern part of the industrial estate via a bridge across the
River Goyt.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That no further work is committed to the concept of a public/private sector
solution for construction of a new access bridge to the estate near Tesco, to
highways adoption standards.

2.2

That Council support is switched to assisting individual landowners to bring
forward a less ambitious scheme that may deliver at least some improvement
to the access issues.

Page 25

2.3

That the Council continues to work with existing businesses on the Bingswood
estate to facilitate and encourage growth, and to develop resilience to potential
disruption which might be caused if the existing bridge fails.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The provision of a new access to the Bingswood Industrial Estate has been a
long-standing aim of the Council. It is identified as a key priority project in the
Council’s Growth Strategy that promotes the development and delivery of
employment sites along the A6 Enterprise Corridor.

3.2

The project is to create a new access to the estate in order to ensure the
future of business in this location. The current access is through a narrow
bridge from the south. The existing access creates traffic congestion in the
town centre and results in HGV movements across the heritage canal basin
and a residential area.

3.3

The existing estate is currently home to 17 businesses, predominantly in the
engineering and manufacturing sectors currently employing approx. 200
people from the local area.

3.4

The Council has spent many years on the project, successfully secured the
land for the bridge, carried out design and feasibility work, and negotiated with
a variety of funders during that time; principally, East Midlands Development
Agency, Derbyshire Economic Partnership, Derbyshire County Council and
D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership LEP). However, the LEP has made it clear
that because of State Aid rules significant contributions from private sector
beneficiaries are a requirement of receiving a grant funding offer.

3.5

A key point is that there can be little doubt that should the proposed bridge be
built then the asset value of the business premises will increase and those
businesses would also be relieved of some inevitable repair costs and risks to
business continuity should the existing privately owned bridge fail.

3.6

Various discussions have taken place with the local businesses over a long
period of time in order to bring about agreement for a joint venture. All these
discussions have failed to get the support of a majority or even a strong
minority. A last attempt was made to do so recently, but those businesses
present confirmed that they would prefer to maintain the existing bridge as the
need arose and not invest in a new bridge. Consequently it is not possible to
secure the public funding required to carry out further design work so any
further work on the project must conclude.

3.7

Under the terms of the section 106 agreement negotiated in 2009 the Council
owned the land for the northern footing subject to a contract for the
construction of a new bridge being let by March 2019. It is clear that as a
result of the recent negotiations this is now not possible. Consequently the
ownership of the land will revert to the previous owners on 9 th March 2019.

3.8

Currently the Council has an option to purchase the United Utilities land for the
bridge footing on south side. This is due to expire at the end of March 2018.
United Utilities have indicated that should the sale not complete by this date,

Page 26

the land will be offered for sale on the open market.
4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Work to support existing businesses identify opportunities for growth will meet
the corporate aims to Support Economic Development & Regeneration.
Specifically, it will meet corporate objectives to encourage business start-ups
and enterprises. Use of the S106 contribution as grant funding to support local
groups will help create flourishing town centres that support the local
economy, and promote tourism.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Option 1 – Continue the project as it is. This is not possible without significant
financial support from the businesses who will benefit from the project. This
support is not in place and therefore any public funding bid will fail.
Consequently it would be a poor use of public resources to continue to pursue
this option. This option is not recommended.
Option 2 - Close the project and end the option of a new bridge but work with
existing businesses on the estate to support options for growth on or off site.
Officers will work to support business expansion both on and off the
Bingswood estate, working with businesses to secure funding for growth and
identify alternative sites for expansion.
This is the recommended option.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications

6.2

Workforce
No implications

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
Equality and Diversity Impact will be considered as part of any
ongoing work.

6.4

Financial Considerations
As per the report in April 2016.

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
No implications

Page 27

6.8

Risk Assessment
The key risk is that business growth is restricted if the existing
bridge fails
 Officers will work with businesses to secure funding for
growth, and identify and bring forward alternative sites for
expansion.

7.0

Background

7.1

The provision of a new access to the Bingswood Industrial Estate has been a
long-standing aim of the Council. It is identified as a key priority project in the
Council’s Growth Strategy.

7.2

Work undertaken to date includes:
2003 - Bridge Design. Detailed constructional drawings were completed by
Scott Wilson towards the end of 2003 and formed the basis of the planning
approval in 2005.
2005 -Planning permission for a single span bridge was granted (ref
HPK/2005/0152 full application). The application has expired and has not
been renewed.
2006- A S106 Agreement for £100,000 was negotiated as part of planning
application HPK/0003/9795 to contribute to a new bridge access to the
Bingswood Industrial Estate, Whaley Bridge. £7,000 was subsequently spent
on preliminary work in 2006, leaving £93k outstanding, together with
approximately £21k interest. The S106 Agreement between the Council and
Tesco contributing to the proposed employment project at Whaley Bridge
expired 9/8/2015 and under the terms of the agreement the outstanding
balance was returned. A report was prepared for the Executive in July 2015 to
update the councillors regarding this.
2007- Approval In Principle (AIP) was undertaken by Scott Wilson (reviewed
2010) to check the design and technical specification of the bridge to ensure
compliance with building and technical standards and obtain an AIP from
Derbyshire County Council.
2009 - Masterplan and Development Appraisal - a masterplan for the area was
completed in April 2009 by Broadway Malyan. The Masterplan focuses heavily
on the solutions for the existing estate and creation of a new access bridge
and road over land owned by United Utilities. The plan sets out a number of
options for the delivery of the bridge, development of additional employment
land opened up, and the enhancement of trading conditions on the existing
estate.
2015 - An outline funding bid for £3.28m for delivery of the bridge was
submitted to the D2N2 Local Economic Partnership (LEP) in 2015. The bid
was unsuccessful.

Page 28

2016 - In April 2016 Tesco agreed to waive the interest of £20,825.78 on the
outstanding amount on the condition that this money is used for the bridge or if
it is not possible to spend the sum within five years to ensure the bridge is
constructed then the money should be set aside for grants to local groups to
benefit their communities. A tender exercise was undertaken in 2016 for the
revision of bridge engineering design and Approval in Principle (AIP). The
Tender for the AIP and engineering design exceed the budget available. The
lowest quote was in the region of £60,000 exceeding the £21,000 available
and procurement was suspended.
2017- An option arrangement was negotiated with UU for the purchase of the
land for the bridge footing (south side). This option expires March 2018. Active
and direct engagement with businesses has taken place.
The Chair and Director of D2N2 LEP visited the site in December 2016 and
November 2017 and stated that more active and direct involvement from
businesses in funding the project would be needed to secure public funding.
The Council held a series of meetings with the businesses and a draft
memorandum of understanding was considered for all partners to work
together.
7.6

The S106 agreement currently in place to allow the Council to access land
adjacent to the Tesco site, requires that the tender for construction is let by
2019 or ownership of the land required for the bridge footing (north side)
reverts to High Peak Developments.

7.8

Given the time constraints imposed by the S106, the deadline for the option to
purchase the United Utilities site, and critically the unwillingness of the
business beneficiaries to contribute to the scheme it is clear that the project
cannot be delivered in the timescales available and is therefore recommended
for closure.

7.9

Following the meeting with businesses in November 2017, Council has invited
interested businesses to engage in conversation regarding growth potential of
the businesses on the estate and how Council may support them. According to
the current Local Plan policies, the provision of new access to the Bingswood
Industrial Estate needs to be constructed before any further development of
the site.

Dai Larner
Executive Director - Regeneration

Page 29

Background Papers

April 2016 report to Corporate
Select
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/
Data/Corporate%20Select%20Com
mittee/201604111830/Agenda/107_
whaley_bridge_report_0.pdf

Contact details
Pranali Parikh
Regeneration Manager
Pranali.Parikh@highpeak.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Page 30

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Economy and Growth Select Committee
8th February 2018
TITLE:

Right to Buy receipts: Update Report

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

COUNCILLOR TONY KEMP –
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR FOR TOURISM,
REGENERATION AND LICENSING

CONTACT OFFICER:

Pranali Parikh – Regeneration Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To update Councillors on progress in allocating Right to Buy (RTB) receipts.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That Councillors note the update on allocating RTB receipts.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

As properties are being continuously sold through the RTB programme,
receipts are continually accruing. The total receipt, as of December 2017, is
now £1,128,514. If these are not spent within a 3 year period they have to be
paid back to central government with interest. The table in 7.3 identifies the
RTB receipts, pay back dates and amounts (including interest).

3.2

Approval was given in January 2016 to enable officers to develop a RTB Grant
scheme. It was also approved that the decision to award each grant be
delegated to the Executive portfolio holder for Housing, by way of an Individual
Executive decision. The grant scheme would enable the Council to work with
registered providers (RP) to deliver additional affordable units for rent, over
and above what can be secured through Section 106 agreements and funding
through the HCA.

3.3

Since the initial grant approval, in January 2016, officers have provided
several reports for an Individual Executive decision. These consisted of the
following:
 to approve a RTB grant at Octavia Gardens, Chapel (Oct 2016),
 general update report and approval in principle of a £300,000 RTB
grant (Feb 2017).

Page 33

 to approve a RTB grant totalling £420,239 towards providing 10
additional affordable rented units at the extra care scheme at Brown
Edge Road, Buxton.
3.2

This report provides Councillors with an update on how much progress has
been secured in spending the RTB budget (set out in section 8). This focuses
upon the recent grant allocation of £420,239 towards providing an additional
10 units of affordable rented extra care units at Brown Edge Road, Buxton.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Will support in the delivery of the corporate aim to ‘support economic
development and regeneration’.

4.2

Will support the achievement of the priority outcome of ’good quality social
housing provision’

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

This report provides an update only and as such, there is no requirement for
options and analysis.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
There are no specific implications within this report.

6.2

Workforce
There are no specific implications within this report.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Councils
Diversity and Equalities policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
As of December 2017 there is £1,128,514 of Right to Buy receipts
available to spend. The next significant expenditure of £163,910 is
required by the 31st December 2018 and will be spent within the
current bid from Housing and Care 21. The remaining funding has
to be spent in phases until December 2020 (see table in 7.3).
Failure by the Council to spend the grant monies within the
timeframe will result in repayment of the funds to central
Government with accrued interest.

6.5

Legal
The Council has powers under the Housing Acts in relating to the
provision of affordable housing. A power of general competence is
also available under section1 of the Localism Act 2011, the
exercise of which is subject to any prohibitions or restrictions that
may exist.

Page 34

Right to buy receipts must be applied in accordance with relevant
legislation and guidance and particularly the Local Authority
(Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (as
amended) and the terms of any agreement reached under the
Local Government Act 2003 modifying the applicability of the
regulations.
Prior to any award being made, and in order that correct
procedures are followed, consideration will be given to the
Council’s procurement options, state aid and general due diligence.
The Council’s own legal team form part of the RTB project team
and provide legal advice at each stage and are responsible for
preparing formal grant agreements.
6.6

Sustainability
Properties built with Right to Buy funding would meet the
appropriate HCA design standards and would be compliant with
building regulations.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
Currently there has only been internal consultation between
services involved.

6.8

Risk Assessment
This is an update report and no risk assessment is required.

Dai Larner
Executive Director Place
Web Links and
Background Papers
Bid Evaluation IED
Report

Location

Contact details

Democratic Services

Pranali Parikh

Update and bid
evaluation IED
Report

Democratic Services

Pranali Parikh

7.

Background and Detail
Right to Buy One for One Replacement

Page 35

7.1

7.2

7.3

In 2012, the government allowed councils to enter into an agreement to retain
Right to Buy receipts in order to build new affordable homes. Under the
agreement the government restricted the contribution from the Right to Buy
receipts to 30% of the cost of the replacement homes. The remaining 70%
would need to be found by the council or by working with a registered provider
partner.
A report was presented to Corporate Select on 21 January 2016 that approved
the development of a grants programme with local registered providers.
Properties are being continuously sold by the council through Right to Buy
which means that the budget is continually accruing. The total available RTB
receipt as of December 2017 is £1,128,514.
The funding table below identifies RTB receipts, expiry date, capital spend
required and repayment amount.
Capital Spend Required Spend
Required
Remaining

Interest payment

Payment to
Government if
not spent

Spent By

RTB Receipt
£

£

£

Dec-18

163,910

546,365

546,365

22,398

186,308

Mar-19

13,642

45,472

45,472

1,855

15,496

£

£

Jun-19

17,855

59,518

59,518

2,415

20,270

Sep-19

285,406

951,353

951,353

38,593

323,999

Dec-19

205,530

685,100

685,100

27,792

233,322

Mar-20

74,348

247,826

247,826

10,053

84,401

Jun-20

2,115

7,049

7,049

Sep-20

165,906

553,019

553,019

22,434

188,340

Dec-20

199,803

666,011

666,011

27,018

226,821

Total

1,128,514

3,761,713

3,761,713

286

152,843

2,401

1,281,357

8.

RTB Grant programme update and expenditure

8.1

Officers have been taking proactive measures to secure bids from locals
Registered Providers (RP’s). As a result, a grant offer totalling £420,439 was
offered to Housing and Care 21 in December 2017. This grant offer enabled
the delivery of an additional 10 affordable units at the extra care housing
scheme being delivered at Brown Edge Road in Buxton. Of the 53 care units,
27 are now available for affordable rent, 14 for shared ownership and 12
private market housing. The scheme is near completion and the RP has made
a claim against £252,369, which was paid in December 2017. The final
payment of the grant is due at practical completion (May 2018) thereby
meeting the grant pay back deadline up to March 2019.

8.2

The £9.1million development for older people comprises 53 two-bedroomed
extra care flats, a residential care unit with 20 ensuite rooms and fullyaccessible communal facilities including a restaurant, hair salon, wellbeing
suite, hobby room and gardens. The scheme is a partnership between the

Page 36

Borough Council, Derbyshire County Council, Housing and Care 21 and the
Homes and Community Agency.
8.3

The development scores highly in delivering a scheme that meets the
Council’s corporate priorities and delivers community benefits by providing
additional accommodation of this type.

Visual from Brown Edge Road.
8.4

A site visit was arranged for Councillors on the 24th January. A representative from
Housing and Care 21, along with the site manager, gave Councillors a tour of the
development. At the same time, the opportunity was taken to prepare and issue a
joint press release to publicise the scheme and highlight the Council’s contribution in
securing the additional affordable units.

8.5

Subject to a planning approval, the Council has also approved a grant, in
principle, of £300,000. The same RP is also submitting further bids to
purchase additional units on a number of housing schemes across the
borough. There is also the possibility of working with RP’s to deliver an
enhanced number of affordable units within the Council’s Accelerated Housing
Delivery programme.

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

ECONOMY AND GROWTH
Chairman: Councillor A McKeown
Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby
Lead Officer: Dai Larner
Date
8-Feb-18

Items

Contact Officer

Page 39

Vision Buxton Bid Presentation
A628 Update Presentation
High Peak Design Guide – Supplementary Planning
Document
Right to Buy Update
Bingswood Industrial Estate - Access and Infrastructure for
Employment
Work programme

Vision Bid
Highways England
Jo Brooks

19-Apr-18

Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Update
Accelerated housing delivery programme – delivery plan
Planning and Growth
Skills and Training Focus
Homelessness Strategy
Work Programme

Pranali Parikh
Pranali Parikh
Pranali Parikh
Pranali Parikh
Mary Walker

May-18

Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman
Work Programme

Jul-18

Local Plan – delivery report
Work Programme

Purpose/Method of
Consideration

Pranali Parikh
Dai Larner

02 February 2018

Agenda Item 10

Hilary Senior

ECONOMY AND GROWTH
Sep-18

Work Programme

Nov-18

Work Programme

To add in

Other infrastructure updates ?

Mark James/Partners
to be invited to attend

Page 40

Update/s on Peak Park Local Plan ?
Arrangements in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire to
create metro area
Proposals for Business Improvement Districts

02 February 2018

